
Grand Ledge Public Schools

Board of Education

MAY 12, 2024 

REGULAR MEETING 
SAWDON ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
BOARD ROOM 
6:00 P.M.



Grand Ledge Public Schools 
 

Regular Meeting 
of the 

Board of Education 
 

Please take notice that the Board of Education will hold a Regular Meeting on: 
 

Date:  Monday, May 12, 2025 
 

Place:  Sawdon Administration Building 
   Board Room 
    220 Lamson Street 

     Grand Ledge, MI  48837  
 

Once the meeting begins, it will be Live Streamed 
at: youtube.com/@GLPS21 (click on Live) 

 

Time:  6:00 p.m.  
 

Purpose:  General Business  
 

Phone:  (517) 925-5400 
 

Board minutes are located at the Board of Education office, 220 Lamson 
Street, Grand Ledge, MI  48837 
 
 
  

William A. Barnes, Ed.D., Superintendent of Schools 
 
cc: Buildings 
 Board Members 
 Lansing State Journal 
 Melissa Mazzola, President, GLEA  
 Ashleigh Lore, Vice-President, GLEA 

Sarah Hopper, President, MEA/NEA Unit I, Secretarial /Clerical 
 Denise Truman, President, MEA/NEA Unit III, Food Service 
 Allyson McCann, President, MEA/NEA Unit IV, Paraeducators, TA & Health Care Paraeducators 

Danis Peck, President, IUOE Local 547, A, B, C, E & H AFL-CIO, Bus Drivers 
Sarra Ruiz, President, Custodial Association 

Date of Posting: May 7, 2025 
 

NOTE:  Individuals may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segment of the meeting.  Any person with a 
disability needing accommodations to attend a Board of Education meeting should contact Kim Manning at 925-5401 at least three (3) days 
prior to the date of the meeting he/she plans to attend 



 
NOTE:  This meeting is a meeting of the Board of Education in public for the purpose of conducting the School District's business and is 
not to be considered a public community meeting. There is a time for public participation during the meeting as indicated on the agenda 

Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education 
MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, May 12, 2025 
6:00 pm 

 
 

I. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance………………...……..……......Denise DuFort, President 
 

II. Roll Call………………………………………………….…..…..Dr. Bill Barnes, Superintendent 
 

III. Approval of Agenda Items 
 

IV. Approval of Consent Agenda Items 
A. April 28, 2025 Meeting Minutes & Closed Session Minutes 
B. Teacher Hiring – Melissa Hall – ELA – Beagle Middle School 

 

V. Presentations 
A. GLHS Class of 2025 Top 25 Scholars 
B. Grand Ledge Education Pathway (GLEP) Update 

 

VI. Reports 
A. Capitol Connections 
B. Eaton RESA 
C. Grand Ledge Education Foundation 
D. Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Committee 
E. Governance Committee 
F. Bond Update 
G. Superintendent 

 

VII. Public Comment 
 

VIII. Old Business 
A. Student Representative to the Board of Education Discussion 

 

IX. New Business 
A. Board Retreat Discussion 
B. Designation of Electoral Representative for the Eaton RESA June 2, 2025 Biennial Election Resolution 
C. Designating District’s Electoral Body Representative & First Ballot Candidate Choice Resolution 
D. Eaton RESA 2025-2026 General Education Budget Resolution 
E. Eaton RESA 2025-2026 CTE Budget Resolution 
F. Bid Award – Neff Secure Entrance 
G. Technology Bond Purchase – Hayes Gym, Cafeteria & Music Rooms 
H. Approval of the Payment of Sinking Fund Invoices 
I. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 1, Series 3 Bond Invoices 
J. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 1, Series 4 Bond Invoices 
K. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 2, Series 2 Bond Invoices 
L. Technology Bond Purchase – Neff Secure Entrance 

 

X. Comments from Staff and Board 
 

XI. Future Topics 
A. Class of 2025 Commencement Ceremony – Friday, June 6, 2025, 7:00 p.m., MSU Breslin Ctr 
B. Bond & Sinking Fund Committee – Monday, June 9, 2025, 5:15 p.m., Room 107 
C. Work Session – Monday, June 9, 2025, 6:00 p.m., Board Room 

 

XII. Adjournment 



"I pledge allegiance  

to the Flag  

of the United States of America,  

and to the republic  

for which it stands,  

one Nation under God,  

indivisible,  

with liberty and justice for all."

CALL TO ORDER & 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Denise DuFort

4



ROLL CALL 

Superintendent Dr. William Barnes

5



PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the                                  
May 12, 2025 Agenda Items, as presented. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA ITEMS

6



A.  April 28, 2025 Meeting Minutes & Closed Session Minutes* 

B.  Teacher Hiring - Melissa Hall - ELA - Beagle Middle School 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the                     
May 12, 2025 Consent Agenda Items, as presented. 

* Closed Session Minutes will be at board member places for review prior to voting. All copies must 
be returned to Kim Manning at the conclusion of the meeting.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

7



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 04-28-2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes    Page 1  
 

 

 GRAND LEDGE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 Board of Education 
 
 Regular Meeting — April 28, 2025 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
Vice President Kuykendoll called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.   She led those 
present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Roll Call by Superintendent Bill Barnes indicated the presence of Board Members: Coban 
Holmes, Matt Oppenheim, Kali Stevens, Toni Glasscoe, Nicole Shannon, Ashley 
Kuykendoll. Board Members Absent: Denise DuFort. Central Office Administrators: Bill 
Barnes, Steve Gabriel, Adrienne Barna, Wendy Seida, Bill Albrecht, Kelly Jones and John 
Ellsworth. Others in Attendance: Michelle Oppenheim, Patrick Bymhold, Abbie 
Burmeister, Jan M. Seeger, Sally Jo Nelton, Melissa Mazzola, John Piper and Kim Manning 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA ITEMS 
Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Dr. Glasscoe for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the Apil 28, 2025 Agenda Items, as presented. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
Motion by Mr. Holmes, seconded by Ms. Shannon for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the April 28, 2025 Consent Agenda Items, as presented. 
 
Included on the Consent Agenda were the April 14, 2025 Meeting Minutes. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.  
 
REPORTS 
A. CAPITOL CONNECTIONS 

Dr. Glasscoe shared it is anticipated the Senate will have a tentative budget by May 11, 
2025. The budget will then go to the House for review and will allow them to present 
their proposed budget. She advised she is keeping an eye on the process. 
 

B. EATON RESA  
Vice President Kuykendoll noted Grand Ledge Public Schools was well represented at 
the CASBA Meeting last week where the RESA shared information regarding their 
proposed 2025-2026 budget.  
 
Mr. Holmes noted the Eaton RESA Budget will come before this board for review and 
consideration in May. 
 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 04-28-2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes    Page 2  
 

 

Ms. Stevens noted that while she wasn’t able to attend the event, she heard the 50-year 
celebration was a wonderful event. 
 
Dr. Barnes noted that prior to the CASBA meeting, there was a celebration of the 50-
year partnership between the Eaton RESA and LCC. During the celebration they had the 
“Fab Labs” on site. There are trailers the Eaton RESA takes around to local schools to 
provide students with a hand-on experience in career and technical fields. He shared 
that he visited the flight simulator wherein he was able to virtually fly a fighter jet which 
he noted was a blast. In closing he noted the students in Eaton County are very lucky 
for this partnership sharing that Davenport College, as well as Farm Bureau are also 
partners in the program that creates great opportunities for kids to get experience and 
earn college credit. 
 
Vice President Kuykendoll noted that less than 5% of the students in Michigan have 
access to CTE in their district sharing that Eaton County has approximately 800 students 
in the program remarking it was impressive to hear about all the wonderful work they 
are doing and learn about new opportunities that may be added down the line. 
 

C. GRAND LEDGE EDUCATION FOUNDATION 
Ms. Shannon noted the Foundation’s focus is on the upcoming 5K Comet Chase 5K. 
There are currently 160 participants registered. She encouraged everyone to tell a friend 
or bring a friend and thanked the board for stepping up for the event. She noted last 
year the Foundation saw over 300 participants and their goals is to beat that this year. 
 
Dr. Gabriel, who serves as the race coordinator shared the new finisher medals for this 
year and commented a third give away will be announced soon. 
 

D. DIVERSITY, EQUITY & INCLUSION 
Vice President Kuykendoll noted the committee did not meet this past month, but Dr. 
Barnes shared data with the committee that they will be discussing at the meeting next 
week. 
 

E. GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Mr. Holmes noted the Committee did not meet last month, but Dr. Barnes shared 
policies with the members that will be reviewed at next week’s meeting. 
 

F. BOND UPDATE 
Bond Supervisor John Piper provided updates on construction work at the High School, 
Willow Ridge, Hayes, Operations, Neff, Wacousta, and the Morris Property. He noted 
that all projects are on schedule and on budget.  
 
Ms. Stevens thanked Mr. Piper and Dr. Barnes for the recent bond tour noting she is 
impressed that the district provides this opportunity to the board throughout the process. 
 
 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 04-28-2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes    Page 3  
 

 

 
G. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

Superintendent Barnes recognized the work the Academic Services department does, 
noting they are a small but might team. He then turned it over to Dr. Albrecht, Executive 
Director for Curriculum, Instruction & Assessment (Academic Services). 
 

a. Curriculum, Instruction & Assessment Department presentation 
Executive Director for Curriculum, Instruction & Assessment, Dr. Bill Albrecht 
introduced his team members in attendance tonight including Michelle 
Oppenheim, Patrick Bymhold and Abbie Burmeister. He recognized two 
members of the team, Karen Frisbie and Chrissy Trotchaud were unable to attend 
and recognized the work of everyone in the department. He and his team went 
on to share how academic services is driving coherence, clarity and impact 
across Grand Ledge Public Schools including leading teaching and learning, 
why this work matters, efforts to ensure that Grand Ledge Public Schools is 
becoming a high-performing and improving school district, the vision for a high 
performing professional learning community, the district school improvement 
goals for academics and programs and learning environment and culture, and 
reviewed MICIP district and school improvement purpose and how it works. 
They also provided information regarding communication and visibility sharing 
information on the Academic Services Calendar, the monthly Academic Services 
Newsletter and a snapshot of the Academic Services mid-year review. They 
reviewed Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment highlighting building a 
coherent learning pathway, defining and supporting high-quality teaching, and 
aligning what we teach with what we measure. They went on to review district 
professional learning with the goals to improve teaching and learning, alignment 
of systems, certification renewal and meeting state requirements through 
monthly teacher leader collaboration, the implementation of the “Principal 
Roadshows”, new/beginning teacher support, mentor teacher support, and 
administrator support. They went on to share information on how they are 
sustaining momentum and innovation with the curriculum, instruction, 
assessment, professional learning and family engagement. They shared 
information regarding the newly formed AI Advisory Group that was created to 
explore the role of AI in education, be instrumental in helping our district 
navigate this evolving landscape, explore AI’s potential in enhancing teaching, 
learning and administrative efficiency while ensuring ethical and responsible 
implementation and provide an opportunity to the district to align our goals, 
discuss key focus areas, and establish a vision for our work together. In closing 
Dr. Albrecht noted that “continuous improvement is a process – our focus is on 
building coherence over time, not overnight.” 
 
A detailed discussion among the board questioned how the new STEAM 
specialist will be absorbed into the elementary schedule, the positive feedback 
received in regard to the calendar design implementing professional 
development, how we are getting feedback from teachers, how students are 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 04-28-2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes    Page 4  
 

 

selected for advance placement with the removal of teacher recommendation, 
highlighting the mindset of our staff who are willing to allow kids access to the 
curriculum they are ready for diminishing inequitable practices, the workload of 
the department highlighting the right people are in the right spots and the team 
collaborates very well, the focus of making the work meaningful and impactful 
not by going elsewhere but by doing the work, managing the data in all the 
systems, implementing the profile of a learner noting that part of the essential 
learnings is ensuring the students are prepared for the next level and what it 
means to be a graduate of Grand Ledge Public Schools. The need to ensure that 
families have what they need to be a support for their students was discussed. 
 
In closing Dr. Barnes noted this is the engine of the school district. This is why 
we are here, this is why it is so complex. We make sure we have clean buildings 
so kids can learn, we make sure there is heat in the buildings so kids can learn, 
we implement IEPs so kids can learn. It all cycles around this work, that is why 
we have the Academic Services Department. 
 

b. Superintendent’s Performance Update – Community Relations 
Superintendent Barnes provided the board with an update regarding 
Communication with Community/Parents, Community/Parent Input, Media 
Relations, District Image, and Approachability goal areas, reviewing the goal for 
each of the areas and providing current initiatives and data sets that support the 
progress for each goal area. 
 
A detailed discussion among the members noted they were happy to hear how 
Dr. Barnes balances his personal and professional life, remarked they hear he is 
approachable, they like the family communications, and appreciate the way the 
CSIT meetings are run and bring about great conversation. It was further noted 
that community relations are a responsibility for each board member and while 
all the things Dr. Barnes shared make a highly effective superintendent, they also 
make high quality board members as well.  
 
In closing Dr. Barnes noted there is still work to do to ensure we are engaging 
all of our community members where they are.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

 
COMMENTS FROM STAFF & BOARD 
Dr. Barnes noted the district served as host to 15 of the best track programs last Friday. This 
was a great event with the side benefit of bringing all of those schools into our community and 
showing off the beautiful space we have created. 
 
Mr. Holmes thanked Mr. Deschaine and Mr. Ellsworth for the handling of the PowerSchool 
breach noting his appreciation for the communication and that he is thankful it was not a larger 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 04-28-2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes    Page 5  
 

 

issue. He also reminded everyone of the Beagle STEAM showcase on May 8th from 6:00 – 8:00 
pm. 
 
Ms. Stevens noted she joined Mr. Oppenheim in visiting classrooms at Beagle last week and 
shared her experience in Ms. Kelly’s and Ms. Leik’s classrooms. 
 
Mr. Oppenheim shared his experience in Ms. Kelly’s, Ms. Leik’s and Ms. Strong’s classrooms 
last week and sharing he will be visiting elementary schools next. He noted he enjoys doing 
this and invited any of the members to join him remarking he enjoyed having Kali next to him 
to give him another perspective that maybe he didn’t quite capture. 
 
Dr. Glasscoe noted she will be at the High School on May 22nd for the Senior Awards. 
 
Ms. Shannon highlighted the Chamber Annual Dinner that took place last week and remarking 
on the number of our staff nominated for educator of the year noting Stacy Nelson won the 
award. She also noted that Tim Marsh was awarded volunteer of the year remarking he is the 
prototype of a great volunteer and this board was fortunate we were able to borrow him for a 
short period of time to fill a vacancy on the board. 
 
Vice President Kuykendoll thanked everyone noting everything we do pours into our kids. 
 
CLOSED SESSION – Negotiations 
Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Mr. Holmes for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to move into Closed Session for the purpose of discussing Negotiations 
Strategies, as per Section 8(1)(c) of the Open Meetings Act. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 

Mr. Oppenheim YES Ms. Shannon YES 
Ms. Stevens YES Vice President Kuykendoll YES 

Dr. Glasscoe YES Mr. Holmes YES 
 
The motion carried unanimously at 8:44 p.m. 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
The meeting reconvened in Open Session at 9:17 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 9:17 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted:    Attest: 
 
 
 
________________________________  _______________________________ 
Nicole Shannon, Secretary    Denise DuFort, President 





 Melissa  Hall 
 1941  Victor  Ave 
 Lansing,  MI  48910 
 melissabeth.hall@gmail.com 
 770-910-4922 

 Wednesday,  April  16,  2025 
 Mr.  Gee 
 12840  Nixon  Road 
 Grand  Ledge,  MI  48837 

 Hello  Mr.  Gee  and  Team, 

 I  am  writing  to  express  my  strong  interest  in  the  kindergarten  teaching  role  you  currently  have  available.  As  an 
 experienced  educator  with  a  passion  for  fostering  growth  and  community  in  my  classroom,  I  believe  my  skills  and 
 background  make  me  an  excellent  candidate  for  this  position. 

 Currently,  I  am  a  dedicated  teacher  with  eighteen  years  of  experience.  I  have  worked  at  Waverly  Middle  School  for  the 
 past  six  years,  teaching  seventh  and  eighth  grades.  My  commitment  to  creating  an  engaging  and  inclusive  learning 
 environment  has  helped  me  to  effectively  cater  to  diverse  student  needs.  Throughout  my  career,  I  have  developed  and 
 implemented  creative  lesson  plans  that  promote  critical  thinking,  storytelling,  and  foster  a  love  for  learning.  Additionally, 
 my  strong  interpersonal  skills  have  enabled  me  to  establish  and  revel  in  positive  relationships  with  students,  parents,  and 
 colleagues,  enhancing  the  educational  experience  for  all.  I  enjoy  coordinating  with  others  in  the  community  to  develop 
 ideas  for  additional  learning  opportunities  for  my  students. 

 I  have  a  growth-mindset,  I’m  creative  and  patient,  a  team-player,  and  dedicated  to  the  service  of  others  in  my  personal 
 and  professional  lives.  I  understand  kindergarten  students  need  self-expression,  consistency,  and  care  as  they  navigate 
 learning  how  to  be  students.  What  an  exciting  and  honorable  job  it  would  be  to  help  them! 

 Thank  you  for  considering  my  application.  I  would  welcome  the  opportunity  to  discuss  how  my  skills  and  experiences 
 align  with  the  needs  of  your  lovely  school. 

 Best, 

 Melissa  Hall 
 770-910-4922 
 melissabeth.hall@gmail.com 



Cultivated and maintained strong, collaborative relationships with students, parents, administration, and faculty, fostering a
positive and supportive learning community.
Led and organized the Quizbowl program, fostering academic excellence and teamwork among students.
Effectively managed and adapted curriculum delivery within overcrowded classrooms, providing individualized support to
students with IEPs and 504 plans, while maintaining a positive and productive learning atmosphere with clear, consistent
expectations and outcomes. 
Developed and participated in many local and district-wide professional development opportunities to further enrich skill set and
experience. 

Adapted and delivered English Language Arts instruction to sixth, seventh, and eighth-grade students, demonstrating strong
classroom management skills and resilience in addressing behavioral challenges while fostering literacy development
Cultivated and maintained strong, collaborative relationships with students, parents, administration, and faculty, fostering a
positive and supportive learning community
Co-chaired the Accelerated Reading/Math Committee, leading initiatives to enhance student achievement and promote academic
excellence.
Coordinated volunteer fundraising, securing funds from local businesses to provide enriching experiences like dances and field
trips, boosting student engagement and morale

Designed and implemented rigorous, inquiry-based, differentiated instruction to third, second, and first graders at Bethesda
Elementary in Lawrenceville, GA. 
Established proactive and consistent communication with parents through newsletters, conferences, and individualized
interactions, fostering strong parent-teacher partnerships and collaborative student support. 
At this multilingual Title 1 School of Distinction, I also focused on critical thinking, data analysis, and collaboration in several
committees that both strengthened community bonds and improved student academics.

Academic Editor, College of Nursing (Present)
Refined academic content, ensuring clarity and precision.

HR Assistant, College of Nursing (Summer 2023)
Supported HR operations, contributing to efficient staff management.

Program Educator, Gear Up (Summer 2022)
Delivered impactful educational programming, fostering student development.

Student Affairs Assistant, College of Nursing (Summer 2016)
 Provided key administrative support, enhancing student services.

Ensured meticulous accuracy in standardized test scoring, maintaining strict adherence to established protocols and guidelines.
Demonstrated a strong attention to detail and commitment to quality in standardized test scoring

Eighth Grade English Teacher 

Sixth-Eighth Grade English Teacher 

Third, Second, and First Grade Teacher 

Michigan State University 

Pearson Test Analyst 

Waverly Middle School: 2017-Present 

Lansing Charter Academy: 2014-2017

Bethesda Elementary: 2006-2014

 Pearson Assessments US: Spring 2021, 2022, 2023

Melissa Hall 

Experienced educator with a strong foundation in communication and
organization.  Exploring opportunities to apply my skills in diverse educational
roles or related fields, with a commitment to professional growth and making a
positive impact.

770-910-4922
melissabeth.hall@gmail.com
1941 Victor Ave
Lansing, MI 48910

BA Elementary
Education 

Associate of Arts  

Ferris State University 
2006

Mott Community College 
2002 

EXPERIENCEEDUCATION

Rose McBrearty 
616-322-1400
rose.sullivan1@gmail.com 

Heather Salais 
Special Educator Co-Teacher
517-899-2727
hesalais@waverlyk12.net 

Sam Sicilia 
Curriculum Director 
301-752-2926
ssicilia@waverlyk12.net 

REFERENCES

Bachelor of Arts Degree in Elementary Education

PERSONAL PROJECT 

Michigan Association of
Professional Court
Reporters (MAPCR)
Member

National Court Reporters
Association (NCRA) Member 

Currently enrolled in
stenography courses to
learn court reporting
shorthand 



A. GLHS Class of 2025 Top 25 Scholars 

Grand Ledge High School Principal, Dr. Ken Wright, will present the Class of 2025 Top 25 Scholars to 
the Board.

PRESENTATIONS A

16



GRAND LEDGE HIGH SCHOOL 
CLASS OF 2025 
TOP SCHOLARS 

 

Riley Goodkin 
a. Parents:  Tatiana Goodkin and David Goodkin 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  AP Scholar with Distinction; National Merit Scholar 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  None 
d. Future Plans:  Planning to attend Michigan State University to major in Physics. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Benjamin Spegel 
a. Parents:  Jennifer Spegel and Daniel Spegel 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  CAAC Senior Scholar Athlete Award, 
Academic All-Conference for Tennis (Freshman-Senior Years) and Track (Sophomore-Senior), 
3rd in Class, National Honor Society, completed 8 AP Classes, 1500 SAT Score 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Captain of the Tennis Team, Track 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend the University of Michigan to study Chemical Engineering. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Prajeet Boinapally 
a. Parents:  Tilak Boinapally and Prashanti Boinapally  
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Top Scholar List 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Tennis, Band, National Honor Society, Asian America, 

 Student Union, Calculus Club, 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to study Movement Science at the University of Michigan. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Spencer Ries 
a. Parents:  Erin Ries and Casey Ries 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  AP Scholar with Honors and CAAC Top 10 Scholar Athlete 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Varsity Soccer, Varsity Track and Field, Marching Band, 

Wind Symphony, AP Calculus Club (President), National Honor Society (Vice President), 
QuizBowl 

d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Michigan Tech to double major in Aerospace 
and Mechanical Engineering. 

e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

 
 



Ellery Curtis 
a. Parents:  Rebecca Curtis and Mike Curtis 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  AP Calculus BC, AP Chemistry, AP Language, AP Statistics, 

AP Psychology, AP Literature 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Lacrosse, Student Council, Graphic Designer for Shared Resources, 

National Honor Society, Yearbook Editor in Chief, Sweets for a Change, 
 Hosting Blood Drives 

d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Michigan State University to study Chemical Engineering. 
e. Any Other Information:  Please sign up for the next blood drive at Dart Bank on 

Friday, July 11th. If you can't donate, encourage someone else to! 
 

Katelyn Roberts 
a. Parents:  Kathleen and Jon Roberts 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Took 7 AP Classes 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Varsity Soccer, LINKs, Concert Band, and National Honor Society, 

I mentor a Delta Center Destination Imagination team that is going to 
Global in Kansas City this May. 

d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend the University of Olivet as a Soccer Commit to study 
Biology and Math. 

 e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Penelope Wernet 
a. Parents:  Jamie Wernet and Kevin Wernet 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Winner of the Kenneth G. Bloomquist Prize and soloed with 

the Lansing Concert Band, AP Scholar Award, Grand Ledge Lions Club Student of the 
Month, Nominated for the Kevin Day All-Star Band at the WMU Spring Conference 2024 
and won first chair, Nominated for the MSBOA Spring Honors Festival 2023, Member of 
the 2025 All-State High School Band 

c. Extracurricular Activities:  Head Drum Major for the Grand Ledge Marching Band (Junior and 
Senior year), Principal Flutist for the Grand Ledge Wind Symphony, Member and 
Executive Board Member of PALs, German Club (President), Eco Club (Vice-President), 
Mathletes (President), Spartan Youth Wind Symphony, National Honor Society,  
Comets Landing 

d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Michigan State University to double major in Plant Biology 
and Flute Performance. 

e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Kylie Goodman 
a. Parents:  Dawn Goodman and Brent Goodman 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  2024 AP Scholar with Honor. CAAC Scholar Athlete Award, 

CAAC Blue All-Academic (2022, 2023, 2024), Northwood University 
Presidential Scholarship 

c. Extracurricular Activities:  Varsity Volleyball: 4 Year Starter & 2 Year Team Captain, 
Student Council (4 years), Key Club (3 years), National Honor Society (3 years), 
Varsity Tennis: #1 singles (1 year) 

d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Northwood University to study Data Analytics and 
play for the Volleyball Team. 

e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Margaret Rodriguez 
a. Parents:  Shannon Rodriguez and Saul Rodriguez 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  National Honor Society, AP Scholar Award, 

Student of the Month 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Marching Band, Wind Symphony, Yearbook, 

National Honor Society, Comets Landing, Jazz Band 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend the University of Michigan. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Michelle Odiase 
a. Parents:  Justice and Abi (Abby) Odiase 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  8 AP classes, 4.0 GPA, AP Scholar with Honors 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Varsity Track, Key Club, Spanish Club, Babysitter and Volunteer 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend the University of Michigan to major in Biochemistry 

to become a Molecular Biologist. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Benjamin Elder 
a. Parents:  Michalene Elder and John Elder 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  CAAC Senior Scholar Athlete Award 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Track, Cross Country, Boy Scouts 
d. Future Plans: Plans to attend Michigan Tech and major in Electrical Engineering. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Kieran Ganga 
a. Parents:  Anil (Uh-nil) Ganga, Erin Ganga 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Member of National Honor Society 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Track and Field 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend the University of Michigan to study Applied Exercise Science 

and become a Physical Therapist. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 



Karis Filipiak 
a. Parents:  Joe Filipiak 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Academic All-State, Region, and Conference 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  PALs, Links, Varsity Gymnastics, National Honor Society, 

Volunteering, Work, Babysitting, Calculus club 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend the University of Michigan to study Neuroscience. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Elijah Hutchinson 
a. Parents:  Cortney Hutchinson and Fred Hutchinson 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Grand Ledge Lions Club Student of the Month, 

AP Scholar with Honor, I was selected and attended the HOBY Leadership Camp 
 at Albion College, I was also selected and attended Boys State at 
Grand Valley State University. 

c. Extracurricular Activities:  Cross Country and Track, Student Council, PALS and 
National Honor Society 

d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Saginaw Valley State University to run and study in a field 
related to either Statistics, Biochemistry, or Sports Medicine. 

e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Violet House 
a. Parents:  Teresa Leigh House 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:   
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Marching Band, Wind Symphony, Comets Landing, German Club 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend the University of Michigan-Dearborn to 

major in Mathematics and Secondary Education. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Alyssa Leisenring 
a. Parents:  Kimberly Leisenring and Robert Leisenring 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  National Honors Society 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Varsity Tennis, Marching Band, Grand Ledge Wind Symphony 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Michigan State University to study Chemical Engineering. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Emma Anderson 
a. Parents:  Sarah Anderson and Todd Anderson 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  All Conference Academic Honors 

All Region Academic Honors 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Varsity Soccer, PALs, National Honor Society, Calculus Club, 

USC-MHS Ambassador, and LINKs 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend the University of Michigan to study Human Biology. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 



Aiden Wear 
a. Parents:  Angela Wear 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  AP Scholar, Lions Club Student of the Month 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Varsity Men’s Volleyball, President of Eco Club, 

Co-President of National Technical Honor Society, Member of National Honor Society 
d. Future Plans:  Planning to attend Michigan Tech to study Mechanical Engineering 

with a Focus in Electro-Mechanical Engineering. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Delayne Hengesbach 
a. Parents:  Amanda Hengesbach and Jamy Hengesbach 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  HOBY Leadership Award Recipient, Top 4 Female Finalist 

at the Sutton Foster Awards in 2023 and 2024, and a nominee for the upcoming 
showcase on May 18th, President of International Thespian Society, Founding 
Member of Students Making a Change, Member of National Honor Society, 
Member of Comets Landing, Member of Links 

c. Extracurricular Activities:  Madrigals, GL Musicals, Orion’s Belt, Dance at Rising Star Studio of 
Dance Arts, Barista at Toads 

d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Boston Conservatory at Berklee to get a BFA in 
Musical Theatre. 

e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

John Miller 
a. Parents:  Elizabeth Miller and Peter Miller 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Taking 6 AP classes, maintaining a 4.0 GPA 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Cross Country, Basketball, Track & Field 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Michigan Tech to study Civil and Geospatial Engineering. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Jackson Myott 
a. Parents:  Lori Myott and Brad Myott 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  National Honor Society; Top 10 Student-Athlete Scholar 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Varsity Basketball, Track, and Cross Country 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Michigan State University to study Engineering. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Abrielle Fountain 
a. Parents:  Lori Fountain and Craig Fountain 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  No less than an A- all 4 years of high school 

including 1 and 1/3 AP classes. 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Marching Band, Multiple Concert Bands, Jazz Band. 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Michigan State University to do General Studies (year 1)then 

Business Management pending admission to MSU's Eli Broad (years 2-4). 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 



Emily Szczepanek 
a. Parents:  Megan Szczepanek  and Brian Szczepanek  
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Received a 5 on APUSH Exam, accepted into Business Early 
College Program, recognized for Perfect Attendance and Superior Commitment to Academics 
for Eaton RESA, Full AINS (Associates in Insurance) Certification, 4.0 at the University of 
Davenport 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Marching Band, Track and Field, Archery, DECA, 4H, Girls State 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to study Business Management at Davenport University. 
e. Any Other Information: N/A  
 

Benjamin Snook 
a. Parents:  Alice Snook and Ryan Snook 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Completed the AP Chemistry, Statistics, Precalculus, 
Biology, and Calculus BC Exams. 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Marching Band, Cross Country, Track and Field, Boy Scouts, 

Mid-Michigan Symphony 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend LCC to run for both the Cross Country Team and 

the Track and Field Team then attend Michigan State University to study medicine.  
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Keegan Dougherty 
a. Parents:  Dawn Hammond and Russ Hammond  
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Honor Roll, Lieutenant Governor of the 2024 Michigan Boys 

State, Full Academic Scholarship to the University of Michigan 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  I announce Freshman and Varsity Athletic Events for Grand Ledge, 

Groundskeeper for Marsh Field, Chair for Student Health Advisory Committee, 
Board Member of the Links Program, 1500+ hours with the National Honor Society 

d. Future Plans:  Plans to major in Biochemistry at University of Michigan. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 
 

Naomi Fitton 
a. Parents:  Rebecca Fitton and Kevin Fitton 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Top 10 Scholar/Athlete Award, Varsity Soccer and 

Cross Country CAAC All Academic 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Comets Landing Co-President, Quiz Bowl President, Varsity Soccer, 

Varsity Cross Country, Diversity Club, Eco Club, and Women’s Equality Club. 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Western Michigan to study Social Work. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 

 
 
 
 
 



Gurleen Kaur 
a. Parents:  Manpreet Kaur and & Vijaypal Singh 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  - Top GPA Class Rank of 12, 6 AP Classes:  AP World 

History, AP Language & Composition, AP Economics, AP Literature & Composition 
AP Statistics, and AP Psychology 

c. Extracurricular Activities:  Student Council Chair, Yearbook Member, Comets Landing 
Co-President, Diversity Club President, DEI Student Board, Member of Sweets for a 
Change, Key Club Member, National Honor Society, Women's Equality Member 

d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Michigan State University to study Business Finance in 
the Eli Broad College.  She plans to pursue a career in Corporate Law as a  
Corporate Lawyer. 

e. Any Other Information: N/A  
 

Aubrie Parish 
a. Parents:  Rachel Parish and Harry Parish 
b. Academic Achievements/Honors:  Top Scholar and Top 10 Scholar Athlete 
c. Extracurricular Activities:  Golf, Soccer, Lacrosse, Musical (all 4 years),  and Madrigals 
d. Future Plans:  Plans to attend Michigan State University to study Human Biology 

on the Pre-Dental Route. 
e. Any Other Information:  N/A 

 



B.  Grand Ledge Education Pathway (GLEP) Update 

GLHS Interventionist, Patrick McKennon will provide the board with an update on the Grand Ledge                    
Education Pathway Program.

PRESENTATIONS B

24



A.  Capitol Connections 

B.  Eaton RESA 

C.  Grand Ledge Education Foundation  

D. Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Committee R 

E.  Governance Committee  

F.  Bond Update 

G. Superintendent 

REPORTS

25



Persons may address the board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segment of the meeting by          
providing your name and jurisdiction (City, Township / County) on one of the Public Comment forms provided at the 
sign in table and turning it in to the Superintendent’s Assistant. 

The meeting chair will use the Public Comment forms submitted to invite persons to come forward to make their  
public comment at the appropriate time. 

Board Meetings are constructed to conduct necessary business of the board, while allowing time for the public to   
express concerns and opinions.   

Out of respect for board members, students and staff, you will be interrupted if you: 
• Personally attack a board member or district employee on issues unrelated to their job performance. 
• Mention a student’s name when discussing behavior or other incidents. 
• Engage in discussion with other members of the audience. 

You will be reminded when you are approaching the end of your three-minute limit so you can conclude with your 
strongest points. 

The board will not respond to questions or comments during public comment but the Superintendent will do his best 
to answer questions at the end of the meeting.  If immediate answers are not available, arrangements will be made to    
provide you with the information requested. 

PUBLIC COMMENT

26



A. Student Representative to the Board of Education Discussion

OLD BUSINESS A

27



A. Board Retreat Discussion

NEW BUSINESS A

28



B. Designation of Electoral Representative for the Eaton RESA June 2, 2025 Biennial Election Resolution 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education appoint (INSERT 
NAME) as its designated representative of this District to the electoral body for the ISD biennial election 
to be held on June 2, 2025 and (INSERT NAME) as an alternate in the event the designated representative 
is unable to  attend. 

ROLL CALL VOTE

NEW BUSINESS B

29









C. Designating District’s Electoral Body Representative & First Ballot Candidate Choice Resolution 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education hereby approve 
the designation of (INSERT NAME) as the representative of this Board to the electoral body, which 
body will elect three (3) candidates to the vacancies on the ISD Board on Monday, June 2, 2025 and 
(INSERT NAME) as an alternate in the event the designated representative is unable to attend. The des-
ignate representative and alternate are further directed to cast a vote on at least the first ballot on be-
half of this Board for (INSERT NAME). 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

NEW BUSINESS C

33



 
 
 

517.543.5500 •  1790 East Packard Highway, Charlotte, MI 48813  •  www.eatonresa.org 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
TO:  Local District Superintendents 
FROM:  Amber Wetherell  
DATE:  May 8, 2025 
 
Re:  Eaton RESA Board of Education Candidate/Election 
 
Good afternoon,  
 
We are pleased to announce that the following two (2) candidates have filed as well as one (1) 
write-in candidate to run for the three (3) open six-year board seats:  
 

• Denise Dufort, who resides in the Grand Ledge School District.  
• Debbie Roberts, who resides in the Eaton Rapids School District 
• Jack Temsey, who resides in the Potterville School District (write-in) 

 
We requested biographical information from all candidates; however, the candidates may also 
contact you directly. Please forward the candidate names and the attached biographies 
received from Denise, Debbie, and Jack to your board members.  
 
According to current statute, Thursday, May 12, 2025, is the earliest date a local district board 
can adopt a resolution to approve the district’s voting representative and designate the three 
Eaton RESA candidates the board supports.  
 
Eaton RESA’s board members are elected by the local district boards of education which 
include Charlotte, Eaton Rapids, Grand Ledge, Maple Valley, Oneida, and Potterville.  
The representatives from these local districts will convene at Eaton RESA on June 2 at 6:00 
p.m. to cast votes that reflect resolutions passed by their boards. An official notice about the 
election date, time, and location will be sent to your board secretary on May 23. A copy will also 
be sent to your office. 
 
In the meantime, after your board takes action, I would appreciate if you would forward the 
resolution approving your representative and designating your board’s two candidate choices for 
the Eaton RESA board to my office.  
 
Please contact Amber Wetherell, awetherell@eatonresa.org, 517.541.8713 if you have any 
questions about the election procedures or any other related matters. 
 
Thank you for your assistance.    
 
 
Attachments 

 
 



 
 

President (write-in) Jack Temsey 
Potterville School District 
(C) 517.898.2859 
jtemsey@eatonresa.org  
Expires June 30, 2025 
Jack and his family live in the Potterville School District. He is 
originally from Massillon, Ohio and currently is a Guest 
Services Representative for Hostmark Hospitality Group. He 
has been on the Eaton RESA Board since 2016 and 
participates in many of the Michigan Association of School 
Board committees. He has a passion for education and 
continues to participate in MASB classes to deepen his 
knowledge base to serve constituent districts and students. 

 
 

Vice President Denise DuFort 
Grand Ledge School District 
(C) 517.927.6541 
denisedufort@gmail.com  
Expires June 30, 2025 
Denise and her family live in the Grand Ledge School 
District. She received her Bachelor of Science in 
Elementary Education from Oakland University and her 
Masters in Language and Literacy from MSU. She has 
been on the Grand Ledge Board since 2016 and recently 
was elected to serve on the Eaton RESA Board. She is a 
strong supporter of public education and chooses to be 
actively involved in current educational research, data 
and issues. She believes in providing high quality 
instruction and positive learning environments for all 
students. 

 

 
 

Secretary Deborah Roberts 
Eaton Rapids School District 
(C) 517.420.6855 
droberts@eatonresa.org  
Expires June 30, 2025  
Debbie and her family live in the Eaton Rapids School 
District. She received her Bachelor’s degree in accounting 
from Central Michigan University. She retired from the 
State of Michigan after 35 years of service. She served in 
various roles including the Director of the Bureau of State 
and Authority Finance, the Executive Director of the State 
Building Authority and the Executive Director of the 
Michigan Finance Authority. She has been on the Eaton 
RESA Board since 2017. She has volunteered at many 
Eaton Rapids Public School activities over the past 20 
years. 

 

 
 

 

2025 Board of Education 
Candidates 







D. Eaton RESA 2025-2026 General Education Budget Resolution 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education (SUPPORT/                     
DISAPPROVE) the 2025-2026 Eaton RESA General Education Budget, as presented. 

ROLL CALL VOTE

NEW BUSINESS D

38

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mlRcY2uFz0VTRy1VNrjZ8gVtElM4m_WO/view?usp=sharing


Support for Budget - GE 
 

 
EATON RESA BUDGET RESOLUTION 

 
             A meeting of the board of education of the Grand Ledge Public Schools District was held on the 
12th  day of May, 2025, at 6:00o’clock in the p.m. 
 
 The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ____________________ and 
supported by Member ______________________. 
 
WHEREAS: 

1. Section 624 of the Revised School Code, as amended, requires the intermediate school board 
to submit its proposed budget not later than May 1 of each year to the board of each 
constituent district for review; and 

2. Not later than June 1 of each year, the board of each constituent district shall review the 
proposed intermediate school district budget, shall adopt a board resolution expressing its 
support or disapproval of the proposed intermediate school district budget, and shall submit 
to the intermediate school board any specific objections and proposed changes the constituent 
district board has to the budget. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The board of education has received and reviewed the proposed Eaton Regional Education 
Service Agency (RESA) General Education budget in accordance with Section 624 of the 
Revised School Code, as amended, and by the adoption of this resolution, expresses its 
support for the proposed Eaton RESA budget. 

2. The secretary of the board of education or his/her designee shall forward a copy of this 
resolution to the Eaton Regional Education Service Agency superintendent no later than June 
1, 2025. 

3. All resolutions insofar as they conflict with this resolution be and the same are hereby 
rescinded. 

 
Ayes: Members 
  
Nays: Members 
 
Resolution declared adopted.  
       ________________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 
 
 

 The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Grand Ledge 
Public Schools District hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution 
adopted by the Board of Education at a meeting held on May 12, 2025, the original of which resolution is 
a part of the Board’s minutes, and further certifies that notice of the meeting was given to the public under 
the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended. 
 

________________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 
 



Disapproval of Budget - GE 
 

EATON RESA BUDGET RESOLUTION 
 
 A meeting of the board of education of the Grand Ledge Public Schools District was held on the 
12th  day of May, 2025, at 6:00 o’clock in the p.m. 
 
 The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ____________________ and 
supported by Member     .___________________. 
 
WHEREAS: 

1. Section 624 of the Revised School Code, as amended, requires the intermediate school board 
to submit its proposed budget not later than May 1 of each year to the board of each 
constituent district for review; and 

2. Not later than June 1 of each year, the board of each constituent district shall review the 
proposed intermediate school district budget, shall adopt a board resolution expressing its 
support or disapproval of the proposed intermediate school district budget, and shall submit 
to the intermediate school board any specific objections and proposed changes the constituent 
district board has to the budget. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The board of education has reviewed the proposed Eaton Regional Education Service Agency 
(RESA) General Education budget and has determined that it disapproves of certain portions 
of the proposed Eaton RESA budget which objections, along with proposed changes, if any 
are set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

2. The superintendent is hereby directed to submit a certified copy of this resolution to the Eaton 
Regional Education Service Agency superintendent with the specific objections and proposed 
changes that this board has to the budget no later than June 1, 2025. 

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 

 
Ayes: Members 
  
Nays: Members 
 
Resolution declared adopted. 
       ________________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 
 

 
 The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Grand Ledge 
Public Schools District hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution 
adopted by the Board of Education at a meeting on May 12, 2026, the original of which resolution is a 
part of the Board’s minutes, and further certifies that notice of the meeting was given to the public under 
the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended. 
 
 

________________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 
 

 



F. Eaton RESA 2025-2026 Career & Technical Education (CTE) Budget 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education (SUPPORT/       
DISAPPROVE) the 2025-2026 Eaton RESA CTE Budget, as presented. 

ROLL CALL VOTE

NEW BUSINESS E

41



Disapproval of Budget - CTE 
 

EATON RESA BUDGET RESOLUTION 
 
 A meeting of the board of education of the Grand Ledge Public Schools District was held on the 
12th  day of May, 2025, at 6:00 o’clock in the p.m. 
 
 The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ____________________ and 
supported by Member     . 
 
WHEREAS: 

1. Section 624 of the Revised School Code, as amended, requires the intermediate school board 
to submit its proposed budget not later than May 1 of each year to the board of each 
constituent district for review; and 

2. Not later than June 1 of each year, the board of each constituent district shall review the 
proposed intermediate school district budget, shall adopt a board resolution expressing its 
support or disapproval of the proposed intermediate school district budget, and shall submit 
to the intermediate school board any specific objections and proposed changes the constituent 
district board has to the budget. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The board of education has reviewed the proposed Eaton Regional Education Service Agency 
(RESA) Career and Technical Education budget and has determined that it disapproves of 
certain portions of the proposed Eaton RESA budget which objections, along with proposed 
changes, if any are set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

2. The superintendent is hereby directed to submit a certified copy of this resolution to the Eaton 
Regional Education Service Agency superintendent with the specific objections and proposed 
changes that this board has to the budget no later than June 1, 2025. 

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 

 
Ayes: Members 
  
Nays: Members 
 
Resolution declared adopted. 
       ________________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 
 

 
 The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Grand Ledge 
Public Schools District hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution 
adopted by the Board of Education at a meeting on May 12, 2025, the original of which resolution is a 
part of the Board’s minutes, and further certifies that notice of the meeting was given to the public under 
the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended. 
 
 

________________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 

 



Support for Budget - CTE 
 

 
EATON RESA BUDGET RESOLUTION 

 
             A meeting of the board of education of the Grand Ledge Public Schools District was held on the 
12th  day of May, 2025, at 6:00 o’clock in the p.m. 
 
 The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ____________________ and 
supported by Member ______________________. 
 
WHEREAS: 

1. Section 624 of the Revised School Code, as amended, requires the intermediate school board 
to submit its proposed budget not later than May 1 of each year to the board of each 
constituent district for review; and 

2. Not later than June 1 of each year, the board of each constituent district shall review the 
proposed intermediate school district budget, shall adopt a board resolution expressing its 
support or disapproval of the proposed intermediate school district budget, and shall submit 
to the intermediate school board any specific objections and proposed changes the constituent 
district board has to the budget. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The board of education has received and reviewed the proposed Eaton Regional Education 
Service Agency (RESA) Career and Technical Education budget in accordance with Section 
624 of the Revised School Code, as amended, and by the adoption of this resolution, 
expresses its support for the proposed Eaton RESA budget. 

2. The secretary of the board of education or his/her designee shall forward a copy of this 
resolution to the Eaton Regional Education Service Agency superintendent no later than June 
1, 2025. 

3. All resolutions insofar as they conflict with this resolution be and the same are hereby 
rescinded. 

 
Ayes: Members 
  
Nays: Members 
 
Resolution declared adopted.  
       ________________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 
 
 

 The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Grand Ledge 
Public Schools District hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution 
adopted by the Board of Education at a meeting held on May 12, 2025, the original of which resolution is 
a part of the Board’s minutes, and further certifies that notice of the meeting was given to the public under 
the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended. 
 

________________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 
 



F. Bid Award - Neff Secure Entrance 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve Bid 
Awards to Dobie Construction in the amount of $61,100 for General Trades, Aaron Glass in the 
amount of $47,800 for Glass and Glazing, H & H Painting in the amount of $4,818 for Painting,          
Integrity Interiors in the amount of $8,180 for Flooring, Myers Plumbing & Heating in the amount of 
$32,000 for HVAC and H & R Electrical in the amount of $37,850 for Electrical with a Construction 
Contingency in the amount of $22,500 and General Conditions in the amount of $5,752 for a Total 
Bid Award of $220,000 using Sinking Fund Dollars for the Neff Early Childhood Center Secure Entry 
Project, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS F

44



 

 

April 30, 2025  
 
 
 
Dr. William Barnes 
Superintendent 
Grand Ledge Public Schools 
220 Lamson St. 
Grand Ledge, MI 48837 
 
Re: Grand Ledge Public Schools – Sinking Fund Project 
              Neff Secure Entry Project 
 Contract Award Recommendation 
  
Dear Dr. Barnes: 
 
As Construction Manager for Grand Ledge Public Schools, Clark Construction Company hereby 
recommends Grand Ledge Public Schools enter into a contract agreement with the contractors listed 
below. 
 
Thirteen (13) competitive bids were received for six (6) bid categories on April 28, 2025. The 
recommended contractors provided the lowest responsive bid for the project. Clark Construction 
Company has conducted a post-bid interview with the recommended contractors, and they have 
confirmed their commitment to the performance of the contract requirements  
 
Clark Construction Company also recommends including a contingency for any unforeseen issues. In 
addition, the General Conditions (GCs) budget is required for construction-related costs such as permits, 
temporary facilities, safety enclosures, etc. This GC budget would be added to Clark Construction 
Company’s Contract for payment of costs. No GC costs will be incurred without first obtaining District 
Administration approval. 
 
Contract award recommendation: 
 

SCOPE OF WORK CONTRACTOR 
  

BASE BID ALTS A-1: 
SECURITY FILM 

ALT A-2: 
WINDOW 

BLINDS 

TOTAL 
CONTRACT 
AMOUNT 

General Trades Dobie 
Construction 

$58,600 - $2,500 $61,100 

Glass & Glazing Aaron Glass $41,500 $6,300 - $47,800 
Painting H&H Painting $4,818 - - $4,818 
Flooring Integrity Interiors $8,180 - - $8,180 
HVAC Myers Plumbing & 

Heating 
$32,000 - - $32,000 

Electrical H&R Electrical $37,850 - - $37,850 
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT – INCLUDING ALTERNATES $191,748 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Neff Early Childhood Center Secure Entry Project 
Contract Award Recommendation 
April 30, 2025 
Page Two 
 
 
Trade Contract Total with Alternates     $191,748 
 
Construction Contingency       $  22,500                                          
General Conditions                         $    5,752       
   
   Total Award Recommendation   $220,000          
 
 
Amount Funded by Sinking Fund     $220,000 
 
We have enclosed a tabulation of all bids received. Please contact me should you have any questions 
regarding the above. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CLARK CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 
 
 
 
Jacki Hilgendorf 
Project Manager 



NEFF EARLY CHILDHOOD CENTER SECURE ENTRY PROJECT
Bid Breakdown - Bids received 4/28/25

BASE BID

ALTERNATE A-1:  
SECURITY FILM ON ONLY 
THE EXTERIOR VESTIBULE 

DOORS

ALTERNATE A-1:  
SECURITY FILM ON ONLY 
THE INTERIOR VESTIBULE 

DOORS

ALTERNATE A-1:  
SECURITY FILM ON ONLY 
THE RECEPTION OFFICE 

WINDOWS

ALTERNATE A-2:  ROLLER 
SHADES ON THE 

RECEPTION OFFICE 
WINDOWS TOTAL - WITH ALTERNATES

04 - MASONRY

No Bids Received

06 - GENERAL TRADES

Dobie Construction, Inc. 58,600.00$                                -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             2,500.00$                                 61,100.00$                                   

LJ Trumble Builders, LLC 68,700.00$                                -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             3,500.00$                                 72,200.00$                                   

Moore Trosper Construction Company 74,285.00$                                -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             3,264.00$                                 77,549.00$                                   

08 - ALUMINUM GLASS & GLAZING

Aaron Glass Co. Inc. 41,500.00$                                1,700.00$                                 2,100.00$                                 2,500.00$                                 -$                                             47,800.00$                                   

09B - PAINTING

H&H Painting Co. 4,818.00$                                  -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             4,818.00$                                     

Vork Brothers Painting 6,150.00$                                  -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             6,150.00$                                     

B&J Painting, Inc. 9,145.00$                                  -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             9,145.00$                                     

Niles Construction Services 10,455.00$                                -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             10,455.00$                                   

09C - FLOORING

Integrity Interiors 8,180.00$                                  -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             8,180.00$                                     

Omega Floors 14,500.00$                                -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             14,500.00$                                   

23 - HVAC

Myers Plumbing & Heating 32,000.00$                                -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             32,000.00$                                   

Wm. Floyd Company 47,100.00$                                -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             47,100.00$                                   

BASE BID

ALTERNATE A-1:  
SECURITY FILM ON ONLY 
THE EXTERIOR VESTIBULE 

DOORS

ALTERNATE A-1:  
SECURITY FILM ON ONLY 
THE INTERIOR VESTIBULE 

DOORS

ALTERNATE A-1:  
SECURITY FILM ON ONLY 
THE RECEPTION OFFICE 

WINDOWS

ALTERNATE A-2:  ROLLER 
SHADES ON THE 

RECEPTION OFFICE 
WINDOWS TOTAL - WITH ALTERNATES

26 - ELECTRICAL

H&R Electrical Contractors LLC 37,850.00$                                -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             -$                                             37,850.00$                                   

BASE BID AMOUNT 182,948.00$                                

ALTERNATE TOTALS 1,700.00$                                    2,100.00$                                    2,500.00$                                    2,500.00$                                    

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT & ALTERNATE AMOUNTS 191,748.00$                              



G. Technology Bond Purchase 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the  
Technology Bond Purchase of Audio/Video for Hayes Gym, Cafeteria and Music Rooms in the amount 
of $146,039.75 from Moss Telecommunications, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS G

48



 

Mark Deschaine, Executive Director of Technology 
220 Lamson St 
Grand Ledge   MI   48837 
deschainem@glcomets.net 
O 517.925.5446   F 517.925.5409 

 
To: Dr. Bill Barnes, Superintendent 
From: Mark Deschaine, Executive Director of Technology	 
Subject: Hayes Audio Visual Improvements 
Date: May 6, 2025 
 
Recommendation 
I recommend the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the following 
2018 Bond Technology purchase: 
 

Audio/Video for Hayes Gym, Cafeteria, and Music Rooms 146,039.75 
  

As part of the planned 2018 Bond, we went out for BID for Audio/Visual additions and 
improvements.  Below you will find the results from the submitted bids and I am 
recommending going with the lowest responsible bidder. 
    

 
 
Appendix A: Band/Choir Rooms 
Appendix B: Gymnasium 
Appendix C: Cafeteria 























H. Approval of the Payment of Sinking Fund Invoices 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the   
payment of Sinking Fund Invoices in the amount of $2,405.00, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS H

60

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1g2LSkE2rvPL_4QdkguLqqZl0J2_6LWlv?usp=sharing


I. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 1, Series 3 Bond Invoices 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the   
payment of Proposal 1, Series 3 Bond Invoices in the amount of $334,393.32, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS I

61

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JXLVDnr6I-Q4b5RENkplProqARzyrz6C?usp=sharing


J. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 1, Series 4 Bond Invoices 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the  
payment of Proposal 1, Series 4 Invoices in the amount of $1,651,875.48, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS J

62

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sBSqjcjfroj3Q2CuON8eu7ktr2t__5PC?usp=sharing


K. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 2, Series 2 Bond Invoices 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the  
payment of Proposal 2, Series 2 Invoices in the amount of $278,386.34, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS K

63

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1sxNdx0Qk2bJfkVY-MvQLOHZi7m911eo4?usp=sharing


L. Technology Bond Purchase - Neff Secure Entrance 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the  
Technology Bond Purchase from RedGuard in the amount of $43,620.57 for the Neff Early Childhood 
Center Secure Entrance, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS L

64



 

Mark Deschaine, Executive Director of Technology 
220 Lamson St 
Grand Ledge   MI   48837 
deschainem@glcomets.net 
O 517.925.5446   F 517.925.5409 

 
To: Dr. Bill Barnes, Superintendent 
From: Mark Deschaine, Executive Director of Technology	 
Subject: Neff Access Controls Recommendation 
Date: May 12, 2025 
 
Recommendation 
I recommend the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the following 
Bond Technology Infrastructure purchase: 
 
 Access controls for Neff Secure Entrance  $43,620.57    
 
Previously the district went out for bid to establish a 3-year contract for Access Controls 
and the Board of Education approved Red Guard as the awarded Vendor.   This 
installment of Access Control improvement is for the Neff Secure Entrance. 



                    

RedGuard Fire & Security - Proposal #RG250051 Page 1 of 2  

Phone 734-233-6000 • Fax: 734-233-6010 
45150 Polaris Court • Plymouth, Michigan 48170 

 
           04/18/2025 

 

Neff Early Childhood Center Vestibule Doors 

 
 
    

Sincerely,  

  Geoff Hacker  

 
 

Mfg and Description Part Number Qty Unit 
Cost

Unit 
Labor 
Cost

Total 
Proposed 

Cost

Closet Components: Installed and programmed

Network Wall Node S2-NN-E2R-WM 1 $2,285.00 $960.00 $3,245.00
Access Control Blade S2-ACM 5 $770.00 $960.00 $8,650.00
Access Power Controller Fused Relay Outputs, 12/24VDC 6A AL600ULACM 1 $550.00 $360.00 $910.00

Field Components: Installed and tested

HID MultiClass SE Reader RP40 6 $360.24 $330.00 $4,141.44
PIR REX Motion DS160 3 $87.99 $210.00 $893.97
Bosch Door Contact ISN-CSD70-W 4 $37.11 $210.00 $988.44
Armored Whip for Mullion AS-QDC2 2 $89.75 $150.00 $479.50
AiPhone Door Station IX-DV 1 $1,351.61 $720.00 $2,071.61
Aiphone Master Station IX-MV7-HB 3 $1,621.11 $720.00 $7,023.33
Camden CX-12PLUS 8-Mode Relay Door Interface CX-12PLUS 2 $103.60 $720.00 $1,647.20
Electric Door Hardware (customer provided) Customer Provided 5 $0.00 $450.00 $2,250.00
Lock Down Button w/Cover SS2224LD-EN 2 $123.60 $210.00 $667.20
Low Profile Combo Sounder/Strobe, 18-30VDC, Amber QF-LP71830A 2 $272.69 $480.00 $1,505.38

Cabling cost for each complete device

Composit Plenum 200-300 Feet (Access Cable) 31965002 5 $396.00 $522.50 $4,592.50
Sheilded CMP 22/6 200-300 Feet (Read Out Reader Cable) 253270BGY0502 2 $104.50 $0.00 $209.00
Cat 6 Plenum 200-300 Feet (Intercom Cable) UY-772405B 4 $121.00 $332.50 $1,814.00
22/4 Plenum Cable 200-300 Feet (Lock-Down Button/Strobes 31041112 4 $85.50 $332.50 $1,672.00

Additional Labor

Remove & Rewire (3) MicroNodes to New Wall Node Labor 3 $0.00 $120.00 $360.00
Low voltage Permit Permit 1 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00
GRAND TOTAL $43,620.57

Purchaser 
 

Signature    
Title    
Date  10/21/2024  
PO #    



                    

RedGuard Fire & Security - Proposal #RG250051 Page 2 of 2  

 
Neff Early Childhood Center Vestibule Doors 

 
 
Scope of Work 
 
 

• Apply For Low Voltage Permit 
• Run Card Access Cabling for (5) Door Locations (Main Entrance Doors, Vestibule Doors, Office Door, Hallway 

Double Doors, Hallway Single Door) 
• Run Intercom Cabling for (1) Door Station & (3) Master Stations 
• Run Lock-Down & Stobe Cabling for (2) Lock-Down Buttons & (2) Strobes 
• Pass Low Voltage Inspection 
• Install Access Control Power Supply 
• Install (1) Network Wall Node 
• Install (5) Access Control Blades 
• Install (1) Access Control Power Supply 
• Install (6) Card Readers 
• Install (4) Door Contacts (Exterior Vestibule Doors & Interior Vestibule Doors) 
• Install (3) REX Motions (Exterior Vestibule Doors, Interior Vestibule Doors & Office Door) 
• Install (2) Armored Whips (Exterior Vestibule Doors, Interior Vestibule Doors) 
• Connect to (5) Existing Electronic Hardware Devices (Main Entrance Doors, Vestibule Doors, Office Door, 

Hallway Double Doors, Hallway Single Door) 
• Reinstall (1) Main Entrance Card Reader to New Cable 
• Install (1) Intercom Door Station 
• Install (3) Intercom Master Station 
• Install (2) Lock-Down Buttons 
• Install (2) ADA Door Modules 
• Install (2) Amber Sounder/Strobe (North & South Ends of the Building) 
• Remove & Rewire (3) Micro Nodes to New Wall Node Blades 

 
*Prints Available for Device Locations 
 

 



COMMENTS FROM STAFF & BOARD

68



• Class of 2025 Commencement Ceremony - Friday, June 6, 2025, 7:00 p.m., MSU Breslin Center 

• Bond & Sinking Fund Committee - Monday, June 9, 2025, 5:15 p.m., Room 107 

• Work Session - Monday, June 9, 2025, 6:00 p.m., Board Room 

FUTURE TOPICS

69



   Time:  _________________________

ADJOURNMENT

70


